
AGENDA 

Mason Transit Authority Board 
Regular Meeting 

February 20, 2018, 4:00 p.m. 
Mason Transit Authority 

Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 

OPENING PROTOCOL 

CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA – ACTION 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

RECOGNITION 
25th Anniversary of Mason Transit Authority 
Terri Drexler’s Service as Previous Board Chair 
New Board member Shelton Commissioner Kevin Dorcy 
Returning Board member Sandy Tarzwell 

CONSENT AGENDA – ACTION 

1. Pg. 03: Approval of Minutes: Approval of the minutes of the January 16, 2018
MTA regular Board meeting 

2. Pg. 07: Financial Reports: January 2018
3. Pg. 17: Check Approval: January 12 – February 15, 2018

REGULAR AGENDA 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
[NONE] 

NEW BUSINESS: 
1. Pg.   27: DoubleMap Contract – Resolution No. 2018-01 – ACTIONABLE 
2. Pg.   45: Development of Annual Review Process of Performance of General

Manager – DISCUSSION   

INFORMATIONAL UPDATES 
1. Pg.   51: Park and Ride Informational Update
2. Pg.   53: Management Reports
3. Pg.   67: Service Review Update
4. Pg.   69: Operational and Statistical Cost Update

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

COMMENTS BY BOARD 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 1



 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
UPCOMING MEETINGS: 
 
 

Mason Transit Authority 
Regular Meeting 

March 20, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. 
Transit-Community Center 

Conference Room 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
Potential Intersection Revisions to 

SR3 and Log Yard Road for the MTA Park and Ride 
Wednesday, March 7, 2018 

5:30 – 7:00 PM 
North Mason Timberland Library 

23081 NE State Route 3 
Belfair 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All participants are welcome. The meeting locations are ADA accessible. If you anticipate needing any 
type of accommodation or have questions about the physical access provided, please call 360-426-9434 
in advance. We will make every effort to meet accommodation requests. 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 2



1 

 

               

Mason Transit Authority 
Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting  
January 16, 2018 
Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 
Shelton 
 
OPENING PROTOCOL 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 4:00 p.m.  
 
At the time of roll call, the Board Chair announced that the County Commissioners had 
one more MTA Board position to fill and that the City of Shelton would be appointing a 
Commissioner to the MTA Board later that evening. She also announced that there was 
a quorum for the meeting and that the meeting could proceed. 
 
Authority Voting Board Members Present: Terri Drexler, Chair; John Campbell, 
Vice Chair; Wes Martin, Randy Neatherlin, Deb Petersen, Don Pogreba and 
Kevin Shutty. Quorum met.  
 
Authority Non-voting Board Member Present: Bobby Joe Murray, Business 
Representative, IAM and AW, District Lodge 160. 
 
Authority Voting Board Members Not Present:  The following positions were not 
present due to temporary vacancies: 1) City Representative Authority Board member vacant 
and to be appointed at City of Shelton Commissioner meeting evening of January 16; and 
2) One Authority Board member position remaining to be appointed by Mason County 
Commissioners.  
 
Others Present:  Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board; Danette Brannin, General Manager; 
Marshall Krier, Maintenance and Facilities Manager; LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager and Mike Ringgenberg, Operations Manager. Also present was John Piety (MCTAB). 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA: Moved that the agenda for the January 16, 2018 Mason Transit 
Authority (MTA) regular board meeting be accepted and approved. Campbell/Petersen. 
Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  None. 
 
RECOGNITION: 

• A letter of appreciation was received by Brian Lagerberg, Director, Public 
Transportation Division of WSDOT, relating to MTA’s assistance during the train 
derailment. The letter was read aloud by the Clerk of the Board. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Moved to approve Consent Agenda items 1 – 3, as follows: 
 

1. Moved to approve the draft minutes of the MTA Board regular meeting of 
December 19, 2017. 

 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 3



2 

 

               

2. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the financial reports for the 
period of December, 2017 as presented. 

 
3. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the payments of 

December 15, 2017 through January 11, 2018, financial obligations on checks #30761 
through #30868, as presented for a total of $486,412.36. 

 
Shutty/Petersen. Motion carried. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
1. Election of Officers. 

a. Chair.  Board member Kevin Shutty was nominated to serve as Chair of the 
Authority Board. Board member Shutty accepted the nomination. There was a 
vote of the Authority Board to appoint Kevin Shutty to serve as Chair of the 
Authority Board.  Unanimously approved. 

b. Vice Chair. John Campbell was nominated to serve as Vice-Chair. Board member 
Campbell declined the nomination. Board member Wes Martin was nominated to 
serve as Vice Chair. Board member Martin accepted the nomination. There was a 
vote of the Authority Board to appoint Wes Martin to serve as the Vice Chair of 
the Authority Board. Unanimously approved. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Lewis-Mason-Thurston Area Agency on Aging Contract (“LMTAAA”) – 
LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager, explained that LMTAAA had approved the 
four-year contract with MTA and that the contract being presented for approval by the Board 
related to the 2018 contract between LMTAAA and MTA in connection with the volunteer 
driver program. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board authorize the Chair to 
execute the Lewis-Mason-Thurston Area Agency on Aging Contract Number 18-1120-0041-
06 for the provision of volunteer transportation services. Petersen/Campbell. Motion 
carried. 

 
2. City of Shelton Alder Street Project – Danette Brannin, General Manager, informed the 

Board that the City of Shelton had been awarded a grant for street improvements on 
Alder Street from 1st Street up Olympic Highway North to C Street. She went on to say that 
MTA would be partnering with the City of Shelton by installing a bus shelter and constructing 
a bus pull-out in the right-of-way at 8th and Alder, as well as installing a crosswalk flasher in 
the vicinity of MTA’s current bus stop near C Street for safety reasons. She also described 
the benefits of partnering with City of Shelton on this project. An interlocal agreement is in 
draft stages and will be brought to the Authority Board for consideration at a later meeting.  

 
INFORMATIONAL UPDATES – 

 
Ms. Brannin and Marshal Krier, Maintenance and Facilities Manager, described to the Board the 
State of Good Repair reporting that will be required under the Transit Asset Management Plan 
beginning in October 2017. The State of Good Repair relates to useful life of the transit’s fleet of 
vehicles and buildings.  MTA has sent an 80% Useful Life Benchmark of its vehicles. Currently, 
Worker/Driver buses are currently beyond their useful life and need to be replaced. In the next 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 4



3 

 

               

six years approximately 70% of the fleet will need replaced stressing the importance of the need 
for available funding at the federal government level. MTA is building reserves for vehicle 
replacement should funding not be available or to meet the match on successful funding 
applications.  
 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT – Ms. Brannin had no additional updates to the report.  
 
COMMENTS BY BOARD MEMBERS – Board member Petersen asked Ms. Brannin if ferry 
service from Olympia was on MTA’s radar and would this impact MTA service. Ms. Brannin 
replied that at this time it was not under consideration. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – None. 
 
Moved that the meeting be adjourned.  

ADJOURNED 4:40 p.m. 
 
UPCOMING MEETINGS 

 
Mason Transit Authority 

Regular Meeting 
February 20, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. 

Transit-Community Center 
Conference Room 

601 West Franklin Street 
Shelton 

 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 5



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 6



February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 7



February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 8



February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 9



February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 10



February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 11



February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 12



February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 13



February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 14



February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 15



February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 16



February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 17



February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 18



February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 19



February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 20



February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 21



February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 22



February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 23



February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 24



February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 25



February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 26



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 1 – Actionable 
Subject:    DoubleMap Contract 
Prepared by:  Mike Ringgenberg, Operations Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    February 20, 2018 
 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes: 
 
MTA issued Request for Proposals #2017-02 to solicit proposals for CAD/AVL and 
Scheduling Software to be installed on the fleet, upgrade the current scheduling 
software to a web-based product and provide passenger amenities. 
 
Four bids were received and interviews were conducted the week of January 8, 2018. 
 
The interview panel scored all proposals based on five criteria: Technical Qualifications 
and Experience; Past performance on similar sized projects; Price; Support, service, 
maintenance and warranty; and Demonstration of product. References were checked 
on each vendor as well. 
 
DoubleMap was selected as the vendor of choice.  The panel felt DoubleMap could best 
meet the needs of MTA and the cost proposal allowed some additional add-ons such as 
destination signs at the T-CC and ruggedized tablets. 
 
Presented is a contract for Board approval. Legal has reviewed the contract. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Not to exceed $350,000. Funding is provided through Sales Tax Equalization. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2018-01 awarding 
the bid submitted by DoubleMap, Inc. as the winning bid in an amount not to exceed 
$425,000 for a five-year period and authorizing the General Manager to sign the 
Technology License and Services Agreement between DoubleMap, Inc. and Mason 
Transit Authority.  
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 27



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 28



            

  1 

Technology License and Services Agreement                             
This Technology License and Services Agreement, together with the Exhibits hereto (this 
"Agreement") is made as of _____________ (the "Effective Date"), by and between 
DoubleMap, Inc. ("DoubleMap"), an Indiana corporation, located at 429 N. Pennsylvania 
Street, Indianapolis, Indiana 46204 and the Mason Transit Authority ("Customer"), a a 
Washington municipal cCorporation, with offices located at 790 E. Johns Prairie Road, 
Shelton, WA 98584. 

WHEREAS, DoubleMap provides an innovative transportation software and hardware such 
as, Automatic Vehicle Location (AVL) , Automatic Vehicle Annunciator (AVA), Automatic 
Passenger Counter (APC), Digital Passenger Counter (DPC) and TapRide Mobile Ride-
Hailing Services (TapRide) platforms for public and private transit systems 

WHEREAS, Customer's riders utilize vehicle transportation services provided by the 
Customer; 

WHEREAS, Customer wishes to license the Service in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement to provide its users an innovative and elegant product to improve their riding 
experience and give the Customer the ability to manage the system; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, DoubleMap agrees to make the System 
or parts of the system available to Customer and its users. 

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows 

1. DEFINITIONS                                                                                                                         

“Activation Date” means the day riders are able to use the application. 

“Capital Costs” means the costs necessary to bring the project to operable status as 
outlined in the Pricing Exhibit.  

“Customer” means the entity or organization operating a transit system that is purchasing 
infrastructure and/or services from DoubleMap under this Agreement.  

"Documentation" means instructional and user manuals relating to the Service made 
available by DoubleMap electronically or in written form under this Agreement. 

“Equipment” means all hardware, antennas, cabling, wiring and other physical electronic 
components provided and/or installed by DoubleMap on vehicle fleet, or otherwise delivered 
to the vehicle fleet and Customer, necessary to the appropriate functioning, delivery and 
maintenance of the Service. 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 29



            

  2 

“Infrastructure” means the equipment, hardware, software, raw data, network, and 
expertise produced, procured or aggregated by Customer or DoubleMap for use in providing 
the Service. 

“Invoice Date” means the date DoubleMap sends Customer an invoice for products or 
services. 

“Party” or “Parties” means DoubleMap and the Customer.  

“Service” means the DoubleMap modules provided by DoubleMap through the combination 
of Equipment, Infrastructure, and certain proprietary software. 

“Successfully Deployed” means that the Customer is utilizing DoubleMap infrastructure or 
service in the course of daily business operations. 

"Users" means all actual and prospective passengers on the transit system. 

“Pricing Exhibit” is the separate document attached to this Agreement that details all of the 
services that the client will be receiving, and the pricing for associated services. 

“Warranty” means a separate protection agreement Customer may purchase. 

2. TERM, FEES AND PAYMENT                                                                                           

2.1.Term. This Agreement will expire sixty (60) months after Activation Date, at which point 
the subscription will be billed. Otherwise, the system will automatically go live once seventy-
five (75%) of the fleet is operating.   

2.2 Renewal. This Agreement will automatically renew for additional one-year terms unless 
either Party notifies the other at least sixty (60) days prior to the end of the current annual 
term that such Party does not intend to renew the Agreement. If the Customer wishes to add 
to the number of their fleet and/or add additional products/services, a new Pricing Exhibit will 
be issued and added to the terms of this Agreement.  

2.3. Fees. Customer shall pay DoubleMap the fees as set forth in the attached Pricing Exhibit. 
(Which includes the Exhibits hereto). DoubleMap will invoice Customer by email or an 
otherwise agreed upon method. Such payments include: 

2.3.1 An initial Capital Cost fee in the amount and installments set forth in Pricing 
Exhibit.  

2.3.2 Annual Costs, payable in annual recurring installments.  The first Annual Fee 
shall be due within thirty (30) days of the Activation Date. 

2.1.3 Any additional expenses as specifically provided for under the terms of Pricing 
Exhibit. 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 30



            

  3 

2.4. Additional Services. If the Customer chooses to add product features or increase their 
fleet quantity during the term of the Agreement, an addendum to this Agreement must be 
signed by the Customer approving changes to the Pricing Exhibit. 

2.5. Custom Features. At any point during the term of the Agreement that the Customer 
purchases a custom feature, a projected timeline will be built into the quote. Should the 
feature take more time than originally projected, DoubleMap will get written documentation 
from the Customer to proceed with development and delivery at a rate of $105 per hour. 

2.6. Variation. All prices and fees described herein will remain firm for a period of twelve 
(12) months from the Activation Date. Standard price and fee increases will be no more 
than 6% per year to cover inflation and other incidental increases. Any additional increases 
over 6% will be preceded by sixty (60) days written notice or discussion with the Customer. 

2.7. Payment Timing. All undisputed fees will be due and payable no later than thirty (30) 
days after the Invoice Date. The Customer shall advise DoubleMap of the reasons for 
disputing the invoice in question within ten (10) business days from the Invoice Date. If 
DoubleMap has not received such notification within such time frame, the invoice in questions 
will be deemed acceptable by the Customer. All amounts paid are nonrefundable provided 
and subject to DoubleMap not being in material breach or violation of this Agreement.  

2.8. Payment Procedure. Customer shall pay all fees in U.S. dollars, and payments shall be 
sent to the address indicated on the invoice, or as otherwise instructed by DoubleMap. 
DoubleMap may withhold services or terminate this Agreement if Customer fails to pay after 
being provided thirty (30) days written notice of such delinquency and provided DoubleMap 
is not in material breach or violation of this Agreement.  

2.9. Taxes. Prices do not include applicable state and local sales, use and related taxes. 
Customer shall be responsible for such taxes or will provide proof of tax exemption upon 
signing of this Agreement. 

2.9.1. Late Payments. DoubleMap reserves the right to charge a penalty on any overdue 
and undisputed charges. DoubleMap may charge a penalty of up to 10% of the total amount 
of the invoice if an invoice is thirty (30) days late.  

3. SERVICE AND SUPPORT                                                                                                     

3.1. Updates and Upgrades. Customer is entitled to receive any maintenance updates to 
the Service that DoubleMap may release or provide to its other customers that improves or 
maintains the stability of the Service ("Updates") at no cost to Customer. If new features that 
add new functionality to the Service ("Upgrades") are offered for sale to DoubleMap's other 
customers, such features will be offered to Customer at or below the prevailing rate. If  
DoubleMap provides new features to Customer at no charge for testing or trial, Customer 
acknowledges that the continued availability, performance, or usefulness of such features are 
not guaranteed or warranted by DoubleMap and such features may be revoked at any time. 

Commented [RJ1]: This provision is contrary to Chapter 
39.76 RCW. 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 31



            

  4 

3.2. Equipment Maintenance and Customer Assistance. In order to minimize downtime, 
Customer shall provide basic, reasonable maintenance of the on-vehicle Equipment when 
instructed by DoubleMap. Such tasks may include, but are not limited to, checking and 
replacing fuses, securing loose connections and swapping defective components with 
replacement parts provided by DoubleMap.  

3.3. Warranty. If a Warranty is procured through DoubleMap, DoubleMap’s technicians shall 
perform any Warranty repairs determined by DoubleMap to be outside of Customer's 
capabilities or responsibilities within two (2) weeks of receiving the reported issue. 

3.4. Hardware Integrations. If the project scope requires a hardware integration, Customer 
shall provide DoubleMap test units and official documentation of the hardware prior to the 
installation for internal integration testing. If the documentation provided to DoubleMap by the 
Customer is outdated or incorrect, Customer shall provide correct documentation to 
DoubleMap with a reasonable time. DoubleMap is entitled to alter project scope timelines if 
incorrect or outdated information is provided. 

3.5. Support and Training. DoubleMap shall provide support, service and training in 
accordance with Pricing Exhibit. Customer is not entitled to any other support, service or 
training that is not on the Pricing Exhibit, any future addendums, or otherwise agreed upon in 
writing by DoubleMap.  

3.6. Availability of Service. DoubleMap will take commercially reasonable measures to 
maximize the availability of the Service to Customer and Customer's riders. Customer 
acknowledges that Service will be intentionally unavailable for necessary system 
maintenance. DoubleMap will give Customer prior notice and will attempt to perform such 
maintenance during off-peak times. If performance of such work is not able to be completed 
during off-peak hours, DoubleMap is entitled to perform the work at a time of its discretion. 
Customer acknowledges that such entitlement is to ensure continuity of service for the 
Customer.   

3.7. Communications. Customer acknowledges and agrees that the Services rely on various 
wireless communication networks (GSM/GPRS/CDMA) in Customer's area. Customer 
acknowledges that DoubleMap is not responsible for the failure of these networks or any gaps 
in coverage. Customer shall notify the responsible communications provider and working with 
them to resolve the problem. DoubleMap will provide reasonable assistance to the extent 
DoubleMap is able in order to resolve any problems. 

3.8. Procurement of Data Services. In cases where DoubleMap does provide cellular data, 
if the Customer is at any point in time able to procure cellular data services at a more attractive 
rate than DoubleMap, the Customer shall work with DoubleMap in order to operate the service 
at the more attractive data services rates. 

3.9. Interruptions to Service and Credits. Customer shall be responsible for personal or 
indirect (through its transit representatives) notification to DoubleMap of any service 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 32



            

  5 

interruptions and DoubleMap will use its best commercial efforts to restore Service 
expeditiously.  

3.9.1 Effect of Service Failure. In any month wherein the Service failed to operate 
for a total of twenty-four (24) hours or more (which time shall exclude reasonably 
scheduled maintenance), and if such Service interruption is the fault of DoubleMap, 
Customer is entitled to a pro-rata credit towards the subsequent invoice, based on the 
number of affected vehicles and the length of the Service disruption. For example, if 
on average one-half (1/2) of the vehicles in operation were affected for one-tenth 
(1/10th) of the time vehicle service was provided to Customer's riders for the month, 
the credit shall consist of 5% of the subsequent invoice.  

3.9.2 Responsibility for Interruptions. DoubleMap is not responsible for Service 
interruptions caused by the malfunctioning of vehicles or problems with 
communications availability as described in Section 3.7. DoubleMap is not responsible 
for service problems related to data procured through third-party hardware. 

3.10. Customer Responsibilities. Customer acknowledges that successful operation of the 
Service is dependent on Customer and its transit representative’s use of proper procedures 
and systems and input of correct data. Customer and its transit representatives shall have 
the sole responsibility for inputting and protecting the data (e.g. route information, stop 
locations, departure schedules) used in connection with the Service. The Customer is 
responsible for providing DoubleMap, Inc. with the necessary information to appropriately 
integrate with the system and deliver all portions of the Agreement. Customer and its transit 
representatives are solely responsible for the accuracy and adequacy of the information and 
data that it furnishes to DoubleMap for use with the Service, and DoubleMap is not 
responsible for reductions in Service quality due to Customer action or inaction. 

3.11. Transportation Department’s Responsibilities. DoubleMap acknowledges that in 
certain cases the Customer is not the owner of the vehicle fleet. The Customer shall work 
with its vendor or supporting party, in recognition that the Service will mutually benefit all 
Parties, to closely ensure that all obligations under the Agreement are satisfactorily met. 

4. WARRANTY AND DISCLAIMER                                                                                           

4.1. Limited Equipment Warranty. If a warranty is procured through DoubleMap, equipment 
provided by DoubleMap is warranted against defects in workmanship and material for one (1) 
year beginning on the Activation Date. DoubleMap may replace, modify, or repair any or all 
components of the Equipment. DoubleMap is not responsible for equipment provided by the 
Customer or other third parties. DoubleMap is not responsible for conditions, malfunctions, 
or damage not resulting from defects in material or workmanship.  

4.2. Disclaimer. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH HEREIN, DOUBLEMAP MAKES 
NO WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY 
IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 
PURPOSE OR ANY WARRANTIES ARISING AS A RESULT OF CUSTOMER USAGE IN 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 33



            

  6 

TRADE OR BY COURSE OF DEALING. WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY OF THE 
FOREGOING, SUPPLIER MAKES NO REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY THAT THE 
SUPPLIER’S SERVICES WILL OPERATE UNINTERRUPTED OR ERROR FREE.  

4.3. Customer Acknowledgement. Customer acknowledges  that: (i) the Service is an 
information tool only and is not a substitute for competent management and oversight of the 
transportation system and personnel; and (ii) the Service is a tool to assist Customer in the 
management, location and inventory of Customer's transportation resources.  

5. LIABILITY                                                                                                                               

5.1. Limitation of Liability. Neither Party shall be liable for any indirect, special, exemplary, 
consequential or incidental damages arising out of or in connection with this Agreement 
(including, without limitation, any damages for lost profits or data or business interruption), 
whether arising from mistakes, omissions, interruptions, deletion of files, errors, defects, 
delays in operation or transmission, or failure of performance, even if DoubleMap has been 
advised of the possibility of such damages. This limitation upon damages and claims shall 
apply without regard to whether other provisions of this Agreement have been breached or 
have proven ineffective. 

5.1.1. Motor Vehicle Use.  DoubleMap shall not be liable to Customer or any third party for 
any claim or action including costs arising out of the use or misuse of any motor vehicles 
operated by Customer in conjunction with or separate from the use of DoubleMap 
infrastructure, including any personal injury claim or action and Customer shall defend, 
indemnify, and hold DoubleMap harmless from any such claim or action including all legal 
costs incurred. 

5.2. Damages. In no event shall DoubleMap's aggregate liability for all claims under this 
Agreement, whether arising in agreement, tort or any other legal theory (including, without 
limitation, negligence or strict liability) exceed an amount equal to the fees paid by client 
hereunder in the twelve (12) month period preceding the act giving rise to the claim for 
damages. 

5.3. Damaged or Lost Equipment. Customer shall be solely responsible for any DoubleMap 
equipment that is lost, stolen, misplaced, damaged, destroyed, or otherwise made 
unavailable to DoubleMap while in the possession of Customer. Customer shall be solely 
responsible for the actual cost of damages to the Equipment resulting from negligence, 
abuse, accident, acts of God, acts of third parties, theft, loss, or destruction. 

5.4. Compliance with Laws and Payment of Taxes. Customer shall: 

5.4.1. Comply with all laws, regulations, and orders relating to this Agreement and the 
Products; 

5.4.2. Pay all applicable taxes, license fees, assessments, and all sales, use, 
consumption, and all other governmental taxes, charges, fees, fines, or penalties 
imposed by any government, upon the Products; and 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 34



            

  7 

5.4.3. File all necessary declaration and returns required by any governmental 
authority having jurisdiction. 

6. OWNERSHIP AND INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY                                                                

6.1. Equipment. In the case of a pilot, DoubleMap shall retain full and absolute ownership of 
any and all Equipment provided by DoubleMap. Ownership of equipment will vary on an ad 
hoc basis and will be detailed in the Pricing Exhibit. 

6.2. Software License. Subject to the terms and conditions in this Agreement, DoubleMap 
grants to the Customer and the Customer accepts a non-exclusive, non-transferable, 
revocable license to use the applicable DoubleMap software, documentation, and data in the 
ordinary course of business and at its place of business. 

6.3. General. Customer acknowledges that DoubleMap is the sole and exclusive owner of all 
rights, title and interest in and to the Service, Equipment, Infrastructure, and all improvements, 
customizations and enhancements thereto. DoubleMap reserves and retains all rights not 
expressly granted to the Customer, including the rights, title and ownership of any related 
instructions, databases, and technology embedded therein or upon which it is based, and the 
related patent rights, copyrights, trade secrets, trademarks and all other related intellectual 
property rights. The terms of this Agreement will govern any software upgrade or update 
provided by DoubleMap that replaces and/or supplements the original DoubleMap software 
unless such update is accompanied by a separate license Agreement. 

6.4. Trademarks. Customer's name and/or logo may be used to denote them as a customer 
on the DoubleMap website in order to direct end- users to the public-facing aspects of the 
Service; If Customer does not want DoubleMap to put Customer’s name and/or logo on the 
DoubleMap website, Customer must notify DoubleMap in writing.  

6.5. Ownership. DoubleMap warrants and represents it is the rightful owner or licensee of 
any and all intellectual property utilized in connection with the services provided under this 
Agreement. 

6.6 Map Interface. DoubleMap is entitled to display any point of interest, e.g., local attraction, 
on the mobile interface, kiosk or website.  DoubleMap is entitled to complete control of the 
interface to ensure an optimal user experience.  

6.7. Restrictions. Customer shall  not access or use licensed infrastructure in any way not 
specifically authorized in this Agreement. Customer shall not: 

6.7.1. Attempt to reverse compile, disassemble, or otherwise reverse engineer all or 
any part of the licensed infrastructure or any other means of circumventing the user 
interface provided by DoubleMap. 

6.7.2. Attempt to disassemble, modify, adapt, access, download, copy, translate, add 
new features, or interfere with licensed infrastructure without the express written 
consent of DoubleMap.  

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 35



            

  8 

6.7.3. Remove, alter or obscure any copyright, trademark notice, restrictive legend, or 
proprietary notice. This license does not grant Customers any right to use the 
trademarks, service marks, or logos of DoubleMap or its licensors. 

6.8. Inspection Rights. DoubleMap shall retain the right to inspect Customer’s use of all 
equipment, software, infrastructure, and services in order to verify Customer’s compliance 
with licenses granted under this Agreement. Customer shall provide reasonable access to its 
facilities and DoubleMap will exercise its right to inspect reasonably and during regular 
business hours. 

7.TERMINATION AND BREACH                                                                                              

7.1. Termination for Breach. If either party believes that the other has materially breached 
any obligations under this Agreement, such party shall so notify the breaching party in writing. 
The breaching party shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of notice to cure the alleged 
breach and to notify the non-breaching party in writing that cure has been effected. If the 
breach is not cured within thirty (30) days, the non-breaching party shall have the right to 
terminate this Agreement without further notice. 

7.2. Effect of Termination and Expiration. Upon termination of this Agreement for any 
reason, DoubleMap and the Customer shall cooperate in good faith to coordinate the timely 
removal of all Equipment in the vehicles (or any  other DoubleMap products otherwise in 
Customer’s possession). The Customer shall grant DoubleMap reasonable access to all 
Equipment within thirty (30) days after termination unless otherwise expressly agreed in 
writing. 

7.3. For Customer Breach. Upon termination of this Agreement for a breach hereof by 
Customer, as a reasonable estimate of actual damages to the business and goodwill of 
DoubleMap, and not as a penalty, Customer shall pay DoubleMap, liquidated damages equal 
in the amount of 50% of the Capital Costs. As a condition to such payment, DoubleMap shall 
execute and return to Customer a full and complete general release that releases Customer, 
as well as their employees, directors, agents, contractors, and affiliates, from any and all, 
claims, causes of action, liabilities, damages, liens, costs or expenses, of any kind 
whatsoever, whether known or unknown, arising out of or related in any way whatsoever to 
this Agreement, Customer's or DoubleMap's performance under this Agreement. 

7.4. For DoubleMap Breach. Upon termination of this Agreement for a breach hereof by 
DoubleMap, as a reasonable estimate of actual damages to Customer, and not as a penalty, 
DoubleMap shall pay Customer, liquidated damages as follows: (i) if prior to the first six 
months of full deployment of the DoubleMap system, 85% of the initial fees paid by Customer 
to DoubleMap under the terms of this Agreement; (ii) if after six months of full deployment of 
the DoubleMap system but within the first year after such full deployment of the DoubleMap 
system, fifty percent (50%) of the initial fees paid by Customer to DoubleMap. There will be 
no refund of Capital Costs after ninety (90) days of Successful Deployment. As a condition to 
any payments due and owing under this Section 7.4, Customer shall execute and return to 
DoubleMap a full and complete general release that releases DoubleMap, as well as its 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 36



            

  9 

employees, directors, agents, contractors, and affiliates, from any and all, claims, causes of 
action, liabilities, damages, liens, costs or expenses, of any kind whatsoever, whether known 
or unknown, arising out of or related in any way whatsoever to this Agreement, Customer's 
or DoubleMap's performance under this Agreement. 

7.5. Survival. Sections 1, 4.2, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9 and 10 of this Agreement shall survive any 
termination of this Agreement. 

7.6. Payment at Termination. In the event of termination of this Agreement, Customer shall 
pay DoubleMap for all products and services delivered up to and including the date of 
termination. 

8. DISPUTES                                                                                                                              

8.1. Governing Law. This Agreement and any related disputes shall be governed by the laws 
and courts of the State of Washington. The United Nations Convention on Contracts for the 
International Sale of Goods will not apply to this Agreement. 

8.2. Dispute Procedure. Except as otherwise provided for in this Agreement, any disputes 
concerning a question of fact arising under or related to this Agreement shall be decided in 
accordance with the following steps.          

8.3. Notice of Dispute. All disputes shall be initiated through a written dispute notice 
submitted by either Party to the other Party within fourteen (14) days of dispute. 

8.4. Informal Negotiation. In the event of any dispute arising under or related to this 
Agreement, the parties shall initially attempt in good faith to resolve the dispute through informal 
negotiation. To initiate information negotiation, a party must give written notice of the dispute to 
the other party (“Negotiation Request”). The Negotiation Request will state the nature of the 
dispute and the requested relief. A management official or legal representative will negotiate on 
behalf of DoubleMap. Following delivery of the Negotiation Request, Customer and DoubleMap 
shall negotiate as often as reasonably necessary to resolve the dispute. If the Parties are 
unable to resolve the dispute within thirty (30) days after delivery of the Negotiation Request, 
then the Parties shall submit the matter to mediation as provided in Section 8.5. 
 
8.5 Mediation. If Informal Negotiation is unsuccessful, the Parties shall make a good faith effort 
to settle any unresolved dispute arising under or related to this Agreement through mediation. 
Mediation sessions will be held at an agreed upon location or mediator’s office in the State of 
Washington. The Parties shall designate a mediator from ThurstonMarion County. If the Parties 
are unable to agree on a mediator, each Party shall select one mediator, and the two mediators 
selected by the Parties shall appoint a third mediator to serve as the sole mediator for the 
dispute. Each Party shall bear its own costs and expenses for the mediation and an equal share 
of mediator’s fees, except that a Party refusing to submit to mediation under this Section shall 
pay the costs and fees, including without limitation attorney’s fees, incurred by the other Party. If 
the initial mediation session fails to resolve the dispute, the parties must participate in a second 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 37



            

  10 

mediation session. In the event the dispute remains unresolved following the second mediation 
session, then the Parties shall submit the matter to arbitration as provided in Section 8.6. 
 
8.6. Arbitration. The Parties shall submit any unresolved dispute arising under or related to this 
Agreement to final and binding arbitration under the American Arbitration Association’s Labor 
Arbitration Rules (“AAA Rules”) as provided in this Section. Arbitration will be conducted in the 
State of Washington. If the Parties are unable to agree on an arbitrator, each Party shall select 
one arbitrator, and the two arbitrators selected by the Parties shall appoint a third arbitrator to 
serve as the sole arbitrator for the dispute. If the two arbitrators selected by the parties are 
unable to agree on the third arbitrator, the parties shall follow the appointment procedure 
outlined in the AAA Rules. 
  
8.7. Litigation. If the mediation fails to resolve a dispute,The Parties may agree that the 
decision of the arbitrator shall not be binding and that either party shall have the right to 
remedies provided by law. 

9. CONFIDENTIALITY                                                                                                                

9.1. Care and Protection of Confidential Information. Customer and DoubleMap agree, 
subject to the requirements of law including Washington’s Public Records Act Chapter 42.56 
RCW (Act), to protect any confidential information of the other with at least the same degree 
of care used to protect its own most confidential information. Customer shall grant access to 
the password-protected portions of the service and any on-vehicle equipment to their 
employees and transit provider only, and not to any third party, without DoubleMap's 
approval. Customer agrees that upon receiving any request pursuant to the Act for public 
access to or disclosure of information associated with this contract or any other confidential 
information as defined by this agreement of DoubleMap in Customer’s possession or control, 
Customer will notify DoubleMap of such request and provide at least 5 days written notice of 
such request prior to public disclosure of the documents.  DoubleMap may take such efforts 
to assert or exercise any rights available to DoubleMap under the Act to prevent or limit such 
public disclosure or access at DoubleMap’s sole and exclusive expense.   

9.1.1. Definition. “Confidential information” shall include trade secrets, financial 
information, pricing, proprietary technical information, procedures, algorithms, 
computer programming techniques and know-how, business information, product 
samples or prototypes, business practices, records, processes, and data of 
DoubleMap or its operations, including but not limited to, information related to 
customers, distributors, sales, financial affairs, pricing, product information, and 
research and development or any other information that could negatively affect 
business operations if publicly disclosed, that (a) has been or will be disclosed to 
Customer under this Agreement, or (b) of which Customer has become or will become 
aware through its relationship with DoubleMap under this Agreement and is not 
generally known in the industry or easily obtainable from other sources. 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 38



            

  11 

9.2. Third Party Confidentiality. Customer and DoubleMap agree to require affiliates, 
subcontractors, partners, and any related third party to comply with the confidentiality 
provision set forth in this Agreement. 

9.3 Remedies for Breach of Confidentiality. Each PartyCustomer acknowledges that the 
remedies at law for any breach of Customer’s obligations under this Section would be inadequate 
and would cause the other PartyDoubleMap irreparable harm. Therefore, in the event of any 
breach or threatened breach of Customer’s obligations under this Section, the other 
PartyCompany is entitled to injunctive relief, without posting bond or other security, in any 
proceeding brought to enforce the provisions. If any court of competent jurisdiction holds that the 
restrictions contained in this Section are unreasonable as to time or scope, such restrictions will 
be reduced to the extent necessary, in the opinion of the court, to make them reasonable.  

10. NOTICES                                                                                                                              

Any notice permitted hereunder shall be sufficiently given if delivered in person, or sent by 
facsimile (with the original sent promptly by ordinary mail), or by registered or certified mail, 
postage prepaid, or by recognized overnight delivery service, to the address of the applicable 
party as set forth below, and such notice shall be deemed to have been given when so 
delivered, sent by facsimile or mailed. By such notice either party may change its address for 
future notices. 

For all notices to DoubleMap, Customer shall provide a copy to: 

For all notices to Customer, DoubleMap shall provide a copy to: 

DoubleMap, Inc. 
Attn: Ilya Rekhter 
429 N. Pennsylvania St. Suite 401 
Indianapolis, IN 46204 
 
Mason Transit Authority 
Attn: Danette Brannin 
dbrannin@masontransit.org 
790 E. Johns Prairie Road 
Shelton, WA 98584 
 
11. MISCELLANEOUS                                                                                                               

11.1. Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding on parties and their successors. Neither 
party shall assign or transfer its rights or obligations under this Agreement without prior written 
permission of the other party, nor will such assignment will be effective until approved in 
writing by the other party. 

11.2 Severability. If any clause or provision of this Agreement is declared to be invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, then and in that event the remaining 
provisions of the Agreement shall remain in force. 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 39



            

  12 

11.3. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be liable or responsible for any failure or delay in 
the performance of its obligations due to causes beyond the reasonable control of the party 
affected, including but not limited to war, sabotage, insurrection, terrorism, riot or other act of 
civil disobedience, strikes or other labor shortages, act of any government affecting the terms 
hereof, accident, fire, explosion, flood, hurricane, severe weather or other act of God. 

11.4. Complete Agreement. This Agreement, including any Schedules hereto, is the entire 
Agreement between the parties as to the matters hereunder and there are no other 
agreements, express or implied. In the case of disagreement in the terms and conditions 
between the Agreement and any of its Schedules, the Agreement shall control, unless 
otherwise expressly stated in a Schedule. The headings of this Agreement are for 
convenience only and shall have no effect on the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. 

11.5. Amendment and Waiver. This Agreement may only be modified by an Agreement in 
writing signed by an authorized executive of both parties. No delay or omission by either party 
in exercising any right or remedy under this Agreement or existing at law or equity shall be 
considered a waiver of such right or remedy. No waiver by either party of any right or remedy 
whether under this Agreement or otherwise shall be effective unless in writing. 

11.6. Promotion Rights. No public statements concerning the existence or terms of this 
Agreement will be made or released to any media except with the prior approval of both 
parties or as required by law. DoubleMap may publicize its relationship with Customer for 
marketing and promotion purposes, which may include issuing a press release indicating the 
relationship or mentioning such relationship on the DoubleMap website (in each case by 
disclosing Customer's name, general information and/or a link to Client's website). 

11.7. Relationship. In making and performing this Agreement, DoubleMap and Customer act 
and shall act at all times as independent contractors and nothing contained in this Agreement 
shall be construed or implied to create an agency, partnership, joint venture, or employer and 
employee relationship between DoubleMap and Customer 

11.8 Piggybacking. DoubleMap gives the Customer permission to allow other state and local 
agencies to piggyback off of this Agreement. For additional requirements concerning 
piggybacking, see the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Circular 4220.1F, ChapterV., 
Paragraph 7(2).  (FTA rev: May 2011). 

   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by and 
through their duly authorized representatives as of the Effective Date 

 
DoubleMap Inc.:      

Name:   ___________________________       

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 40



            

  13 

Title:    ___________________________         

Signature:  ___________________________        

Effective date:  ___________________________      

 

Mason Transit Authority:            

Name:   ___________________________       

Title:    ___________________________        

Signature:  ___________________________        

Effective date:  ___________________________    

Are you, the Customer, tax exempt?  ___________________________     

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 41



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 42



Resolution No. 2018-01 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-01 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
AWARDING THE BID SUBMITTED BY DOUBLEMAP, INC. OF 

INDIANAPOLIS, INDIANA AS THE WINNING BID AND AUTHORIZING 
THE GENERAL MANAGER TO SIGN A CONTRACT WITH DOUBLEMAP, 

INC. TO PROVIDE CERTAIN BUS SERVICE TECHNOLOGY SERVICES IN 
AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $425,000 FOR A FIVE-YEAR PERIOD. 

 WHEREAS, the Mason Transit Authority (“MTA”) Board, by motion at its August 15, 
2017 meeting, approved the Transit Development Plan for 2017-2022 for submission to 
WSDOT, which included, in part, the implementation of a full range of Automatic Vehicle 
Locator and Automatic Passenger County technology, including voice annunciation for bus stops 
and security systems in all Fixed Route and Demand Response vehicles; and 

WHEREAS, having received that approval by the MTA Board and funding provision 
through the Sales Tax Equalization program, the General Manager proceeded with the Request 
for Proposal process of requesting submittals of proposals to provide bus technology; and 

WHEREAS, on November 20, 27, and December 4, 2017, a Request for Proposal 
announcement was published by the Daily Journal of Commerce and also posted under the Bids 
& Contracting Opportunities tab on the Washington State Office of Minority and Women’s 
Business Enterprises website requesting that bids be submitted to Mason Transit Authority no 
later than 2:00 p.m. on Friday, December 29, 2017 to MTA’s Administration Office located at 
790 E. Johns Prairie Road, Shelton, WA 98584; and 

 WHEREAS, four bids were timely submitted; and 

 WHEREAS, after interviews by a panel consisting of MTA staff and review of scorecards 
submitted by the members of the panel, DoubleMap was the winning bidder and was found to 
meet all the necessary specifications and requirements and at a lower cost. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that it awards the bid submitted by DoubleMap, Inc. of Indianapolis, Indiana, as the 
winning bid in an amount not to exceed $425,000 for a five-year period and will provide certain 
Services as provided in the Technology License and Services Agreement (the “Agreement”); and 
hereby authorizes the General Manager to sign the Agreement between DoubleMap, Inc. and 
Mason Transit Authority. 
 

Adopted this 20th day of February, 2018. 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Kevin Shutty, Chair      Wes Martin, Vice-Chair  

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 43



Resolution No. 2018-01 Page 2 of 2 
 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
  
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Terri Drexler, Authority Member    Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Deborah Petersen, Authority Member  Don Pogreba, Authority Member 
 
____________________________ 
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 44



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 2 – DISCUSSION 
Subject:    Annual Review Process of Performance of General Manager 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    February 20, 2018 
 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes: 
 
As I approach the completion of my second year of serving as General Manager of MTA, 
I believe that an annual review of my performance should be considered by the Board. 
This process will assist in communication between me and the Board to ensure that I 
am moving MTA in the direction desired, as well as addressing any development and 
goals to be achieved. 
 
It seems appropriate to use the Leadership Performance Appraisal form used for 
management staff as the basis of the review. The form is included for discussion.  
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
None. 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Discussion to develop process for General Manager’s annual review. 
 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
None.  
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 45



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 46



   
 

 

NDrive Update_Shared_Human Resources_Manager’s Toolbox 
Page 1 

Leadership Performance Appraisal 

Has Position Description been reviewed 
  Yes   No 

Position Description Updated 
  Yes   No 

Performance Period 
From        To        

Purpose of Employee Performance Appraisal       Annual       Probationary       Transitional       Other (Specify) 
Employee Last Name 
      

Employee First Name 
      

Employee Title 
      

Team 
      

Evaluator’s Name 
      

Date 
      

 
 

Summary of Performance Performance Definitions 
Needs Some Improvement Performance standards are not fully achieved; employee needs to improve performance. 
Successful Work is fully satisfactory; employee consistently meets and occasionally may exceed performance 

standards.  This represents the expected level of performance as established by the supervisor. 
Exceeds Expectations Work is fully satisfactory and often exceeds performance standards. 

 
Mason Transit Authority Statements of Vision, Mission, Guiding Principles & Core Competencies 
Vision ~ We serve people through world-class transit. 
Mission ~ We provide transportation choices that connect people, jobs, and community, increasing the quality of life in 
Mason County.   
Guiding Principles ~ We believe that public transportation and personal mobility are essential to the economic vitality, 
environmental stability and quality of life in Mason County.  Our core values guide our actions each day: 
Core Competencies ~ Our core competencies guide our actions each day. 

 
GUIDING PRINCIPLES 

Service Excellence:  We go beyond the expectations of our customers and provide inspirational leadership to deliver 
safe, comfortable and reliable service; we see today’s best as our motivation to make tomorrow’s even better. 
Safety:  We provide and enforce a safe and secure environment for our customers, community and teammates through 
awareness, consistent training, and allocation of resources. 
Professionalism:  We conduct our work transactions with integrity, fiscal responsibility and transparency.  We engage 
the community in our decision making by sharing information and encouraging public involvement. 
Teamwork:  We achieve our greatest success as a team.  We embrace diversity, support each other and treat each other 
with respect, and use meaningful communication. 
Partnerships:  We explore and build collaborative and healthy alliances to promote and advance our mission. 
Innovation:  We constantly explore ways to improve.  We celebrate inspiration, creativity, initiative and courage in all 
things to promote a world-class customer service experience. 

  Needs Some Improvement   Successful  Exceeds Expectations 
COMMENTS:        

 

CORE COMPETENCIES 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 47



   
 

 

NDrive Update_Shared_Human Resources_Manager’s Toolbox 
Page 2 

Leadership Performance Appraisal 

Inspirational Leadership:  Takes initiative; acts decisively; creates an environment that motivates and challenges others; 
adapts to a variety of situations; develops fresh ideas that provide solutions to all types of workplace challenges; shares 
information, plans, develops, and implements our vision; promotes MTA’s mission and values and models ways to 
achieve them. 

  Needs Some Improvement   Successful  Exceeds Expectations 
COMMENTS:        

Informed Decision Making:  Researches data to grasp issues, draw conclusions, and solve problems resulting in sound 
solutions that, when judged over time, are aligned with MTA’s vision and mission; commits to action, even in uncertain 
situations, to accomplish organizational goals; identifies, assesses and manages risk while striving to attain objectives. 

  Needs Some Improvement   Successful  Exceeds Expectations 
COMMENTS:        

Transparency & Accountability:  Builds trust and respect through consistently honest and professional interactions; uses 
public funds and resources appropriately; approaches each situation with a clear perception of organizational and 
political realities;; recognizes the impact of alternative courses of action; assures that effective controls are developed 
and maintained to ensure the integrity of the organization and its mission; seeks and builds strategic alliances and 
collaborative arrangements through partnerships to advance the mission of the organization; actively communicates 
decisions with stakeholders. 

  Needs Some Improvement   Successful  Exceeds Expectations 
COMMENTS:        

Respectful Relationships:  Helps create a work environment that embraces and appreciates diversity; treats others fairly 
without regard to race, sex, color, religion, or sexual orientation; recognizes differences as opportunities to  learn and 
grow by working together; establishes and maintains constructive relationships; works to preserve the self-confidence 
and self-esteem of others; focuses on the situation, issue or behavior, to the person; takes initiative to make things 
better; models appropriate behaviors for others. 

  Needs Some Improvement   Successful  Exceeds Expectations 
COMMENTS:        

Personal Responsibility:  Demonstrates integrity, honesty and ethical behavior; personally acknowledges and accepts 
responsibility for meeting expectations and correcting mistakes; exhibits self-control and responds to feedback non-
defensively; executes principles of workplace safety; complies with all safety policies and procedures; takes 
responsibility for efficient, effective use of time, equipment and resources. 

  Needs Some Improvement   Successful  Exceeds Expectations 
COMMENTS:        

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 48



   
 

 

NDrive Update_Shared_Human Resources_Manager’s Toolbox 
Page 3 

Leadership Performance Appraisal 

Outstanding Customer Service:  Provides accurate and timely information; understands and is responsive to our 
customers’ objective ES and needs; is accessible, provides timely  and responsive replies to customer requests, e-mails, 
phone messages and mail; handles customer inquiries and complaints in a prompt, courteous and professional manner 
while adhering to rules and regulations; anticipates, assesses, responds to changing customer needs; consistently 
provides products and services that meet or exceed the expectations of the customers. 

  Needs Some Improvement   Successful  Exceeds Expectations 
COMMENTS:        

 
SUMMARY OF OVERALL PERFORMANCE 
       
 
 
EMPLOYEE COMMENTS 
       
 

 
LEADERSHIP DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

Targeted Goals Specific Activity(ies) to Attain Goal Completion Date or Timeframe 
                  
                  
                  

 
SIGNATURES 

(Employee’s signature indicates neither agreement nor disagreement with summary.  It indicates summary has been discussed with employee.) 

Employee’s Signature: Date: 

Supervisor’s Signature: Date: 

HR or GM Signature: Date 

 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 49



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 50



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational – Item 1 - Informational 
Subject:    Mason Transit Authority Regional Mobility Park and Ride 

Progress Update 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    February 20, 2018 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes:   
 
Project Management:  SCJ is continually managing the design team and subconsultant 
team. SCJ is tracking on-going project progress. An updated project schedule has been 
prepared. Project is slightly behind schedule on non-critical path items due to 
outstanding comments from the City and County  
 
Permitting: Communicated and coordinated submittals with Mason County and City of 
Shelton regarding permits.  
Pickering Road and Cole Road permit plans have been resubmitted to Mason County.  
Pear Orchard: Shoreline Permit and conditions is complete. Grading permit is being 
prepared. Plans are mostly done except for incorporation of shoreline permit conditions. 
 
Design Development: Completed Landscape and Irrigation plans for Pear Orchard.  
 
Belfair Park and Ride: Work continued on the Intersection Control Analysis for SR3 and 
Log Yard Road. A public meeting has been set for March 7 from 5:30pm to 7:00pm at 
the Belfair Timberland Library. SCJ will present three or four options for intersection 
control for public input as part of the analysis. Building design is in progress.  
 
Other progress: In conversation with Parsons regarding the Shelton-Matlock Park & 
Ride project as the Coffee Creek fish passage design is routing the passage through the 
current park & ride. Parsons has proposed three sites for relocating the park & ride and 
have submitted an Area of Potential Effect report to WSDOT.  
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 51



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 52



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational Item 2 – Informational 
Subject:    Management Reports 
Prepared by:  Tracy Becht, Executive Assistant 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    February 20, 2018 
 
Summary for Informational Purposes: 
 
The monthly MTA Management Reports are attached for your information. 
 
  

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 53



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 54



  

 

MTA MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
 

Submitted to MTA Authority Board February 20, 2018 
 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 55



 
 1 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
2/

20
/2

01
8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK  

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 56



 2 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
2/

20
/2

01
8 

 

 

MTA MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
Submitted to MTA Authority Board February 20, 2018 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

Below is a l ist of major activit ies for the month: 
• Attended the WSTIP Executive Committee Retreat. I am on the Executive Committee again for 

2018 representing the members at large. The annual retreat is a working retreat to update 
the Strategic Plan, set the work plan for the year and discuss future direction. I am also the 
chair for the Board Development Committee. 

• Participated in the Small-Medium Transit Alliance (SMTA) weekly legislative update phone 
conference. Jennifer Ziegler, Lobbyist for the group, keeps us updated on current bills, 
especially those that may affect transit. 

• Bi-weekly calls with Nelson/Nygaard to discuss progress of service review project. 
• Met with City of Shelton Public Works Director to discuss potential roundabout on 1st and 

Alder as part of the Alder Street project. 
• Participated in another round of interviews for the Tech Support Analyst position. Happy to 

report we hired Josh Jacobs. Josh is already doing an outstanding job. 
• Attended WSTA Quarterly Board Meeting and SMTA meeting. 
• Attended two Consolidated Grant funding meetings at WSDOT as part of a committee 

working on an easier process for the grant application process. Also, attended one meeting 
with the committee working on the ranking process for RTPOs and MPOs. 

• Attend PRTPO Technical Advisory Committee meeting. 
• Worked with LeeAnn on the Procurement policy. The policy is lengthy with many FTA 

requirements. The goal is to have the policy to the Policy Committee by the April meeting and 
to the Board for approval in April. 

• Met with Department of Ecology, Mason Conservation District and City of Shelton regarding 
the parking lot at the T-CC. The project is moving forward. Currently waiting for response from 
DOE’s Voluntary Cleanup Program. Have asked for a “No Further Action Required” opinion 
from DOE. 

• Rode routes with five drivers towards my goal of riding with all drivers in the first quarter 
(need to get moving!) 

• Participated in a webinar titled The Age of the Multigenerational Workforce. Very interesting 
thoughts and perspectives regarding the differences in each generation to consider. 

• Attended the County Commissioner meeting in Belfair to update community on the Belfair 
Park & Ride project. 

• After much discussion over selecting a vendor for the RFP to provide CAD/AVL and  
Scheduling Software, the team selected DoubleMap. The potential to provide better tools for 
staff and riders is exciting.  

• Met with the Near Miss Committee. The committee consists of four drivers, Mike 
Ringgenberg and me. The purpose is to develop a process for reporting near misses while 
driving. We are also working on a flowchart for events. 

• Participated in an interview of a candidate for the EDC Executive Director.  
• Attended monthly EDC Board Meeting. 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 57



 
 3 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
2/

20
/2

01
8 

 

• Conducted board orientation for Commissioner Kevin Dorcy. 
• Met with SCJ on Park & Ride Development project. (See update included under 

Informational) 
• Met with LeeAnn to discuss AWC requirements of the Wellness Program. LeeAnn sent a 

survey to all employees to gauge the participation level. The program has some heavy 
requirements at first so we want to make sure there is interest. 

• Conducted Joint Labor-Management Committee meetings for the Drivers and Comm Center. 
• Attended monthly WSTIP Executive Committee meeting and the Board Development 

committee meeting. 
• Attended PRTPO meeting. 
• Met with Kyle Cronk and Commissioner Shutty regarding the YMCA. 
• Various staff meetings. 
• I will be on vacation February 26 through March 2. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 58



 4 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
2/

20
/2

01
8 

 

 

TEAM UPDATES 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES MANAGER – LeeAnn McNulty 

HR Dashboard - 69 FTE’s, plus 7 Worker Drivers, not including compensated board members. 
Hired 2018 - 2, Termed 2018 – 0   
HR Statistics 
• Pre-Baby Boomers are those ages 74 +  
• Baby Boomers are those ages 54-73 – we have 

48 Baby Boomers on staff.   Retirements will 
pose a significant challenge in staffing, 
especially in the driver group in the coming 
years. 

• Generation X are those ages 38-53 – we have 
20 Gen X on staff. 

• Millennials are those ages 18-37 – we have 8 
Millennials on staff.  

• Post Millennials are those under the age of 18 
we have none. 

       Chart includes board members, statistics do not. 
HR Support  
• Created and published a survey to measure employees’ interest in relaunching a Wellness 

Program.   
• Circling back to finishing edits to Health and Safety manual for presentation to the Safety 

Committee for review.   
• Prepared & submitted the FTA required Drug and Alcohol Monitoring and Information System 

(DAMIS) report due by March 15. 
• Provided clarity on the use and recordkeeping of sick leave under the new law at our All-Staff 

meeting.  Employees were given the chance to ask questions relating to the changes. 
Recruiting 
• We have filled the Technical Support Analyst position.  We are delighted to have Josh Jacobs 

join our team.  Josh recently received two IT related degrees from South Puget Sound 
Community College and served as an intern for DSHS. 

• There are no open positions currently. 
Building Knowledge  
• I attended a three day USDOT – Transportation Safety Institute course to obtain Substance 

Abuse Management and Program Compliance certification in Orange, CA.  This training 
provided guidance to ensure compliance with the procedures for transportation workplace 
drug and alcohol testing programs (CFR Part 40) and prevention of alcohol misuse and 
prohibited drug use in transit operations (CFR Part 655).  

Finance  
• The Finance team worked alongside Maintenance to perform and reconcile a complete fleet 

parts inventory. 
• Work continues in closing out 2017 and preparing for the completion of the annual report. 
• Work begins to prepare the financial reporting in the 2017 NTD report. 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 59



 
 5 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
2/

20
/2

01
8 

 

• Prepared a first draft of a revamped Procurement Policy, as well as a first draft of a Purchase 
Order Policies and Procedures document.  Danette will be providing assistance in working 
toward a final draft for board approval anticipated for April. 

 
MAINTENANCE/FACILITIES – Marshall Krier 

• Bus Shelters: Steve Kellam, our Facility Technician, has been extremely busy updating all the 
bus shelters with new schedule holders and route maps. This was a large project requiring 
modification to the shelters and holders for proper fit and appearance.  

• Bus Schedules: Steve Ellertsen, Service Mechanic, has been installing new schedules on the 
buses and cutaways.   

• Fire Safety Inspection: Fire District 11 just completed a mandatory fire safety inspection of 
our Johns Prairie Facility. Overall, they were very impressed with our facility and how well we 
are maintaining it. There were a couple of minor issues that needed correction. These 
included removing an exit sign, repairing a defective emergency light and exit sign and 
adding some signage to our fire alarm panel and sprinkler riser room. As part of the 
inspection they also performed a fire drill. I want to thank everybody for keeping our 
workplace safe and clean.  

• Promotional Graphics: The team recently completed installation of 25-year anniversary 
graphics on buses, cutaways, bus shelters and T-CC.  

• Smart Bus Technology: We have been providing the DoubleMap team technical 
specifications and information that is required to install the Smart Bus technology on our 
buses. 

 
OPERATIONS – Mike Ringgenberg 

• Driver Reviews: Operations supervisors are finishing up the semi-annual driver reviews. 
• Employee Performance Appraisals: Operations supervisors will be starting the 2017 

Employee Performance Appraisals this month. 
• Feb 5, 2018 Driver/Route Shake up:  Shake up has been completed and a change was 

made to our rider guides. We decided to switch to rack cards for each route vs. including the 
schedule in the rider guides. This change is projected to save MTA $5,000 - $8,000 a year in 
printing costs. Rider guides will still be available but will only include information for riders 
regarding service, rules, contact information, etc. 

• New IT guy: Josh Jacobs is on board and is currently handling day-to-day IT tasks along with 
HCC for MTA!! 

• RFP 2017-01 Service Review:  The 2018 service review has begun:  Nelson/Nygaard 
conducted passenger ride checks and on-board surveys on February 6-8, 2018.  

• RFP 2017-02 Technology:  We have selected Doublemap to install technology on the buses 
and new software for dispatch. 

• Shake Ups: The next Comm/Center shake up is scheduled for May 21, 2018 and the next 
driver/route shake up is scheduled for June 4, 2018.   

• Travel Training:  One staff graduated the EverSafe Driving Program Certified Instructor course 
so she can train vanpool/volunteer drivers & community van operators. 

• Vanpool: Usage rate for Jan 2018 was 56%, 9 of 16 vans were in use, Kathy G is conducting 
outreach with local business to build this program. 

 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 60



 6 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
2/

20
/2

01
8 

 

TRANSIT-COMMUNITY CENTER – Steve Weisenbach 
Facility use traffic report:  

• Gym:  Gym use for January came in at just over 1,000 people using the gym. Our normal 
recreational programs continued to keep the gym busy and the MTA All-Staff meeting capped 
the month off! Disc Golf will continue into February as our newest Parks and Recreation 
program and CHOICE is utilizing the gym twice a day in these bad weather months. 

• Conference Room:  Conference room use for December came in at about 150 people from 
weekly meetings and a couple of holiday parties. 

• Kitchen:  Mrs. Xinh and Taylor Shellfish continue to work in the kitchen operating at over 15 
hours a week currently and held an additional training day for out of area Taylor Employees. 
Wild and Woodsy used our kitchen in January for a private tasting event as well as catering 
our All Staff Meeting. Thanks Heather and Fred! Kitchen visitors were at about 150 people. 

• Atrium:  Mason County Public Health Department has been setting up an information table in 
the T-CC atrium on Wednesdays from 2-5PM. Christine, with the Health Department, is 
providing information on opioid abuse, recovery, and resource assistance to those who seek 
help. She has made contact with several individuals and families who sought information. 

 
We are currently working with Kathy Geist on installing a new plexi-glass case to display our new 
route maps in at the T-CC. We will begin the install once the case arrives. We are also working on 
a future kiosk area in the atrium at the T-CC that will be used for revolving information related to 
the season, shake-ups, outreach, community announcements, etc. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE 
 INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 
  

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 61



 
 7 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
2/

20
/2

01
8 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

 
 
 

 
  

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 62



 8 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
2/

20
/2

01
8 

 

2018 WORK ITEMS UPDATE 
 

 

 

 

 

SEE ATTACHED SPREADSHEETS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 63



 
 9 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
2/

20
/2

01
8 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 64



N
:\

Ad
m

in
\A

dm
in

 S
ha

re
d\

M
TA

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
Bo

ar
d\

20
18

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
Bo

ar
d\

W
or

kp
la

n 
U

pd
at

e

20
18

 W
or

k 
Ite

m
s

Co
m

pl
et

ed
 a

s 
of

 2
/1

6/
18

1s
t Q

ua
rt

er
2n

d 
Q

ua
rt

er
3r

d 
Q

ua
rt

er
4t

h 
Q

ua
rt

er

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
 fi

na
liz

ed
 a

nd
 in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
Tr

an
sit

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 (T

DP
)

∆
∆

Re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 u

pd
at

e 
Em

pl
oy

ee
 H

an
db

oo
k 

ba
se

d 
on

 u
ni

on
 c

on
tr

ac
ts

∆

Cr
ea

te
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
an

ag
em

en
t M

an
ua

l a
nd

 u
pd

at
e 

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t P

ol
ic

y
∆

In
st

al
l B

us
 T

ec
hn

ol
og

y 
an

d 
ne

w
 sc

he
du

lin
g 

so
ft

w
ar

e
∆

∆
∆

De
ve

lo
p 

a 
w

or
k 

pl
an

 fo
r p

ar
ki

ng
 lo

t u
pg

ra
de

s
∆

Ac
co

un
tin

g 
So

ft
w

ar
e

∆

In
co

rp
or

at
e 

Re
m

ix
 in

to
 se

rv
ic

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
∆

Fi
na

liz
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
ea

su
re

s
∆

∆
∆

∆

De
ve

lo
p 

a 
ro

ut
e 

de
vi

at
io

n 
po

lic
y

∆

Co
ns

ol
id

at
ed

 G
ra

nt
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
fo

r 2
01

9-
20

21
∆

∆

In
st

al
l r

ea
r d

es
tin

at
io

n 
sig

ns
 o

n 
lo

w
 fl

oo
r b

us
es

∆

Pu
rc

ha
se

 re
fu

rb
us

he
d 

bu
se

s f
or

 W
or

ke
r/

Dr
iv

er
 p

ro
gr

am
∆

Re
-t

ra
in

 a
ll 

dr
iv

er
s o

n 
a 

re
gu

la
r b

as
is 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 c

on
sis

te
nt

 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
sa

fe
ty

∆
∆

∆
∆

Pa
rk

 &
 R

id
e 

pr
oj

ec
t (

th
ro

ug
h 

20
23

)
∆

∆
∆

∆

T-
CC

 p
ar

ki
ng

 lo
t c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

∆
∆

∆
∆

Pr
og

re
ss

 is
 re

po
rt

ed
 in

 B
oa

rd
 p

ac
ke

t m
on

th
ly

.

H
av

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 so

il 
re

su
lts

; a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

su
bm

itt
ed

 to
 D

O
E 

fo
r V

ol
un

te
er

 C
le

an
up

 P
ro

gr
am

; W
ai

tin
g 

fo
r a

ns
w

er
 fo

r D
O

E.
 M

et
 w

ith
 C

ity
, 

Co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

Di
st

ric
t a

nd
 D

O
E.

M
an

ag
em

en
t s

ta
ff 

ha
s i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
ea

su
re

s a
nd

 a
re

 n
o 

w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

es
ta

bl
ish

in
g 

be
nc

hm
ar

ks
.

Fi
rs

t q
ua

rt
er

 d
riv

er
s w

ill
 g

o 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
PA

SS
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 H

ar
as

sm
en

t t
ra

in
in

g

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 h

as
 b

eg
un

 u
sin

g 
Re

m
ix

; r
ou

te
s a

re
 b

ei
ng

 p
op

ul
at

ed
 in

to
 sy

te
m

. P
ro

je
ct

 is
 c

om
pl

et
e

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 to
 b

eg
in

 w
or

k 
on

 th
is 

in
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
7

Pr
og

re
ss

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t p

ol
ic

y 
ha

s b
ee

n 
dr

af
te

d.
 

Ve
nd

or
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

se
le

ct
ed

. C
on

tr
ac

t i
s r

ea
dy

 to
 a

pp
ro

ve
.

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 65



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 66



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational – Item 3 - Informational 
Subject:    Mason Transit Authority Service Review Update 
Prepared by:  Mike Ringgenberg, Operations Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    February 20, 2018 
 
Summary for Informational Purposes:   
 
 
Rider surveys on all fixed routes were conducted February 6-8. The Nelson/Nygaard 
team collected 219 surveys in the three days. Next step is to distribute the survey to 
Dial-a-Ride and Link passengers. 
 
There will also be an on-line survey posted on MTA’s website soon. 
 
In addition to current rider surveys, Nelson/Nygaard has put together a Public Outreach 
and Engagement Plan that lays out the process for outreach to the community. Public 
meetings and other outreach opportunities will be a part of the plan to gather more 
information from both users and non-users of MTA services. 
 
Internal staff will have opportunity to provide input as well. 
 
Nelson/Nygaard is working on a conditions report that will include information about 
such things as our current service, stop levels and demographic data. 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 67



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 68



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational – Item 4 - Informational 
Subject:    Operational Costs and Statistical Information 
Prepared by:  LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    February 20, 2018 
 
Summary for Informational Purposes:   
 
Attached is an analysis of operational cost for 2017. The statistics include cost per mile, 
cost per ride and cost per hour for our service modes.  
 
The report compares 2017 to 2016 with noted percent variance. 
 
The expenses represent direct cost to the project and do not include indirect expenses 
or expenses not related to the service such as the Transit-Community Center.  
 
This report will also be used to set performance measures and track trends. 
Management will determine performance measures based on industry standards and 
comparison to similar transits. 
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 69



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 70



 2
01

7 
O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 S
ta
tis
tic
s

Fi
xe
d 
Ro

ut
e 
(in

 c
ou

nt
y)

Ja
n 

- M
ar

 
20

17
A

pr
 - 

Ju
n 

20
17

Ju
l -

 S
ep

 
20

17
O

ct
 - 

D
ec

 
20

17
20

17
20

16
Va

ria
nc

e 
20

16
/2

01
7

Pa
ss

en
ge

r T
rip

s 
(o

ne
-w

ay
 b

oa
rd

in
gs

)
45

,4
80

52
,4

78
48

,5
38

50
,0

19
19

6,
51

5
18

8,
38

6
4.
3%

R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 M
ile

s
35

,9
09

38
,0

68
37

,8
51

38
,3

37
15

0,
16

5
12

4,
76

8
20

.4
%

R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 H
ou

rs
2,

80
3

2,
95

8
2,

95
5

2,
86

3
11

,5
79

10
,9

44
5.
8%

D
ire

ct
 P

ro
je

ct
 E

xp
en

se
s

16
8,

18
7

$ 
   

  
18

9,
04

7
$ 

   
  

18
0,

41
2

$ 
   

  
23

1,
88

0
$ 

   
  

76
9,

52
6

$ 
   

  
61

6,
90

6
$ 
   
 

24
.7
%

Tr
ip

s/
M

ile
1.
27

1.
38

1.
28

1.
30

1.
30

9
1.
51

0
‐1
3.
3%

C
os

t/T
rip

3.
70

$ 
   
   
   
  

3.
60

$ 
   
   
   
  

3.
72

$ 
   
   
   
  

4.
64

$ 
   
   
   
  

3.
92

$ 
   
   
   
  

3.
27

$ 
   
   
   
  

19
.6
%

M
ile

s 
P

er
 H

ou
r

12
.8
1

12
.8
7

12
.8
1

13
.3
9

12
.9
7

11
.4
0

13
.8
%

C
os

t/M
ile

4.
68

$ 
   
   
   
  

4.
97

$ 
   
   
   
  

4.
77

$ 
   
   
   
  

6.
05

$ 
   
   
   
  

5.
12

$ 
   
   
   
  

4.
94

$ 
   
   
   
  

3.
6%

Tr
ip

s/
H

ou
r

16
.2
3

17
.7
4

16
.4
3

17
.4
7

16
.9
7

17
.2
1

‐1
.4
%

C
os

t/H
ou

r
60

.0
0

$ 
   
   
  

63
.9
1

$ 
   
   
  

61
.0
5

$ 
   
   
  

80
.9
9

$ 
   
   
  

66
.4
6

$ 
   
   
  

56
.3
7

$ 
   
   
  

17
.9
%

Fi
xe
d 
Ro

ut
e 
(o
ut
 o
f c
ou

nt
y)

Ja
n 

- M
ar

 
20

17
A

pr
 - 

Ju
n 

20
17

Ju
l -

 S
ep

 
20

17
O

ct
 - 

D
ec

 
20

17
20

17
20

16
Va

ria
nc

e 
20

16
/2

01
7

Pa
ss

en
ge

r T
rip

s 
(o

ne
-w

ay
 b

oa
rd

in
gs

)
36

,0
82

40
,7

90
38

,7
73

37
,3

81
15

3,
02

6
16

2,
37

4
‐5
.8
%

R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 M
ile

s
10

4,
14

9
10

8,
44

7
10

7,
85

8
97

,4
14

41
7,

86
8

43
8,

73
0

‐4
.8
%

R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 H
ou

rs
4,

21
5

4,
39

4
4,

35
5

3,
93

9
16

,9
03

18
,4

83
‐8
.5
%

D
ire

ct
 P

ro
je

ct
 E

xp
en

se
s

48
7,

80
4

$ 
   

  
53

8,
55

1
$ 
   
 

51
4,

09
3

$ 
   

  
58

9,
20

5
$ 

   
  

2,
12

9,
65

3
$ 

2,
16

4,
32

3
$ 

‐1
.6
%

Tr
ip

s/
M

ile
0.
35

0.
38

0.
36

0.
38

0.
36

6
0.
37

0
‐1
.1
%

C
os

t/T
rip

13
.5
2

$ 
   
   
  

13
.2
0

$ 
   
   
  

13
.2
6

$ 
   
   
  

15
.7
6

$ 
   
   
  

13
.9
2

$ 
   
   
  

13
.3
3

$ 
   
   
  

4.
4%

M
ile

s 
P

er
 H

ou
r

24
.7
1

24
.6
8

24
.7
7

24
.7
3

24
.7
2

23
.7
4

4.
1%

C
os

t/M
ile

4.
68

$ 
   
   
   
  

4.
97

$ 
   
   
   
  

4.
77

$ 
   
   
   
  

6.
05

$ 
   
   
   
  

5.
10

$ 
   
   
   
  

4.
93

$ 
   
   
   
  

3.
3%

Tr
ip

s/
H

ou
r

8.
56

9.
28

8.
90

9.
49

9.
05

8.
79

3.
1%

C
os

t/H
ou

r
11

5.
73

$ 
   
   

12
2.
57

$ 
   
   

11
8.
05

$ 
   
   

14
9.
58

$ 
   
   

12
5.
99

$ 
   
   

11
7.
10

$ 
   
   

7.
6%

D
em

an
d 
Re

sp
on

se
Ja

n 
- M

ar
 

20
17

A
pr

 - 
Ju

n 
20

17
Ju

l -
 S

ep
 

20
17

O
ct

 - 
D

ec
 

20
17

20
17

20
16

Va
ria

nc
e 

20
16

/2
01

7
Pa

ss
en

ge
r T

rip
s 

(o
ne

-w
ay

 b
oa

rd
in

gs
)

11
,2

62
11

,2
76

10
,5

64
11

,0
11

44
,1

13
46

,2
62

‐4
.6
%

R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 M
ile

s
75

,1
69

88
,1

90
81

,8
52

78
,6

07
32

3,
81

8
32

5,
59

3
‐0
.5
%

R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 H
ou

rs
6,

33
7

6,
96

0
6,

83
3

6,
33

1
26

,4
61

28
,4

19
‐6
.9
%

D
ire

ct
 P

ro
je

ct
 E

xp
en

se
s

35
2,

07
0

$ 
   

  
43

7,
95

4
$ 

   
  

39
0,

13
8

$ 
   

  
47

5,
45

2
$ 

   
  

1,
65

5,
61

4
$ 

1,
60

9,
87

0
$ 

2.
8%

Tr
ip

s/
M

ile
0.
15

0.
13

0.
13

0.
14

0.
13

6
0.
14

2
‐4
.1
%

C
os

t/T
rip

31
.2
6

$ 
   
   
  

38
.8
4

$ 
   
   
  

36
.9
3

$ 
   
   
  

43
.1
8

$ 
   
   
  

37
.5
3

$ 
   
   
  

34
.8
0

$ 
   
   
  

7.
9%

M
ile

s 
P

er
 H

ou
r

11
.8
6

12
.6
7

11
.9
8

12
.4
2

12
.2
4

11
.4
6

6.
8%

C
os

t/M
ile

4.
68

$ 
   
   
   
  

4.
97

$ 
   
   
   
  

4.
77

$ 
   
   
   
  

6.
05

$ 
   
   
   
  

5.
11

$ 
   
   
   
  

4.
94

$ 
   
   
   
  

3.
4%

Tr
ip

s/
H

ou
r

1.
78

1.
62

1.
55

1.
74

1.
67

1.
63

2.
4%

C
os

t/H
ou

r
55

.5
6

$ 
   
   
  

62
.9
2

$ 
   
   
  

57
.1
0

$ 
   
   
  

75
.1
0

$ 
   
   
  

62
.5
7

$ 
   
   
  

56
.6
5

$ 
   
   
  

10
.5
%

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 71



 2
01

7 
O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 S
ta
tis
tic
s

W
or
ke
r D

riv
er

Ja
n 

- M
ar

 
20

17
A

pr
 - 

Ju
n 

20
17

Ju
l -

 S
ep

 
20

17
O

ct
 - 

D
ec

 
20

17
20

17
20

16
Va

ria
nc

e 
20

16
/2

01
7

Pa
ss

en
ge

r T
rip

s 
(o

ne
-w

ay
 b

oa
rd

in
gs

)
13

,0
14

11
,5

04
12

,4
30

11
,8

53
48

,8
01

50
,3

20
‐3
.0
%

R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 M
ile

s
15

,1
57

15
,6

82
15

,2
93

13
,5

04
59

,6
36

60
,3

65
‐1
.2
%

R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 H
ou

rs
62

9
64

1
62

7
55

1
2,

44
8

2,
51

8
‐2
.8
%

D
ire

ct
 P

ro
je

ct
 E

xp
en

se
s

36
,7

99
$ 

   
   

 
47

,0
93

$ 
   

   
 

43
,8

61
$ 

   
   

 
47

,7
14

$ 
   

   
 

17
5,
46

7
$ 
   
 

17
1,
32

1
$ 
   
 

2.
4%

Tr
ip

s/
M

ile
0.
86

0.
73

0.
81

0.
88

0.
81

8
0.
83

4
‐1
.8
%

C
os

t/T
rip

2.
83

$ 
   
   
   
  

4.
09

$ 
   
   
   
  

3.
53

$ 
   
   
   
  

4.
03

$ 
   
   
   
  

3.
60

$ 
   
   
   
  

3.
40

$ 
   
   
   
  

5.
6%

M
ile

s 
P

er
 H

ou
r

24
.1
0

24
.4
6

24
.3
9

24
.5
1

24
.3
6

23
.9
7

1.
6%

C
os

t/M
ile

2.
43

$ 
   
   
   
  

3.
00

$ 
   
   
   
  

2.
87

$ 
   
   
   
  

3.
53

$ 
   
   
   
  

2.
94

$ 
   
   
   
  

2.
84

$ 
   
   
   
  

3.
7%

Tr
ip

s/
H

ou
r

20
.6
9

17
.9
5

19
.8
2

21
.5
1

19
.9
4

19
.9
8

‐0
.2
%

C
os

t/H
ou

r
58

.5
0

$ 
   
   
  

73
.4
7

$ 
   
   
  

69
.9
5

$ 
   
   
  

86
.6
0

$ 
   
   
  

71
.6
8

$ 
   
   
  

68
.0
4

$ 
   
   
  

5.
3%

Ex
pr
es
s 
Ro

ut
es

Ja
n 

- M
ar

 
20

17
A

pr
 - 

Ju
n 

20
17

Ju
l -

 S
ep

 
20

17
O

ct
 - 

D
ec

 
20

17
20

17
20

16
Va

ria
nc

e 
20

16
/2

01
7

Pa
ss

en
ge

r T
rip

s 
(o

ne
-w

ay
 b

oa
rd

in
gs

)
8,

43
9

9,
50

5
9,

15
7

9,
16

9
36

,2
70

31
,9

02
13

.7
%

R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 M
ile

s
31

,5
18

32
,7

08
32

,2
88

25
,0

47
12

1,
56

1
13

0,
21

9
‐6
.6
%

R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 H
ou

rs
1,

21
8

1,
26

6
1,

24
7

1,
07

1
4,

80
2

5,
14

9
‐6
.7
%

D
ire

ct
 P

ro
je

ct
 E

xp
en

se
s 

14
7,

62
1

$ 
   

  
16

2,
42

9
$ 

   
  

15
3,

89
7

$ 
   

  
15

1,
49

6
$ 

   
  

61
5,
44

3
$ 
   
 

64
3,
85

8
$ 
   
 

‐4
.4
%

Tr
ip

s/
M

ile
0.
27

0.
29

0.
28

0.
37

0.
30

0.
24

21
.8
%

C
os

t/T
rip

17
.4
9

$ 
   
   
  

17
.0
9

$ 
   
   
  

16
.8
1

$ 
   
   
  

16
.5
2

$ 
   
   
  

16
.9
7

$ 
   
   
  

20
.1
8

$ 
   
   
  

‐1
5.
9%

M
ile

s 
P

er
 H

ou
r

25
.8
8

25
.8
4

25
.8
9

23
.3
9

25
.3
1

25
.2
9

0.
1%

C
os

t/M
ile

4.
68

$ 
   
   
   
  

4.
97

$ 
   
   
   
  

4.
77

$ 
   
   
   
  

6.
05

$ 
   
   
   
  

5.
06

$ 
   
   
   
  

4.
94

$ 
   
   
   
  

2.
4%

Tr
ip

s/
H

ou
r

6.
93

7.
51

7.
34

8.
56

7.
55

6.
20

21
.9
%

C
os

t/H
ou

r
12

1.
20

$ 
   
   

12
8.
30

$ 
   
   

12
3.
41

$ 
   
   

14
1.
45

$ 
   
   

12
8.
16

$ 
   
   

12
5.
05

$ 
   
   

2.
5%

To
ta
l S
er
vi
ce
 

Ja
n 

- M
ar

 
20

17
A

pr
 - 

Ju
n 

20
17

Ju
l -

 S
ep

 
20

17
O

ct
 - 

D
ec

 
20

17
20

17
20

16
Va

ria
nc

e 
20

16
/2

01
7

Pa
ss

en
ge

r T
rip

s 
(o

ne
-w

ay
 b

oa
rd

in
gs

)
11

4,
27

7
12

5,
55

3
11

9,
46

2
11

9,
43

3
47

8,
72

5
47

9,
24

4
‐0
.1
%

R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 M
ile

s
26

1,
90

2
28

3,
09

5
27

5,
14

2
25

2,
90

9
1,

07
3,

04
8

1,
07

8,
67

5
‐0
.5
%

R
ev

en
ue

 V
eh

ic
le

 H
ou

rs
15

,2
02

16
,2

19
16

,0
17

14
,7

55
62

,1
93

65
,5

13
‐5
.1
%

D
ire

ct
 P

ro
je

ct
 E

xp
en

se
s 

1,
19

2,
48

1
$ 

  
1,

37
5,

07
4

$ 
  

1,
28

2,
40

1
$ 

  
1,

49
5,

74
7

$ 
  

5,
34

5,
70

3
$ 

5,
20

6,
27

9
$ 

2.
7%

Tr
ip

s/
M

ile
0.
44

0.
44

0.
43

0.
47

0.
45

0.
44

0.
4%

C
os

t/T
rip

10
.4
4

$ 
   
   
  

10
.9
5

$ 
   
   
  

10
.7
3

$ 
   
   
  

12
.5
2

$ 
   
   
  

11
.1
7

$ 
   
   
  

10
.8
6

$ 
   
   
  

2.
8%

M
ile

s 
P

er
 H

ou
r

17
.2
3

17
.4
5

17
.1
8

17
.1
4

17
.2
5

16
.4
7

4.
8%

C
os

t/M
ile

4.
55

$ 
   
   
   
  

4.
86

$ 
   
   
   
  

4.
66

$ 
   
   
   
  

5.
91

$ 
   
   
   
  

4.
98

$ 
   
   
   
  

4.
83

$ 
   
   
   
  

3.
2%

Tr
ip

s/
H

ou
r

7.
52

7.
74

7.
46

8.
09

7.
70

7.
32

5.
2%

C
os

t/H
ou

r
78

.4
4

$ 
   
   
  

84
.7
8

$ 
   
   
  

80
.0
6

$ 
   
   
  

10
1.
37

$ 
   
   

85
.9
5

$ 
   
   
  

79
.4
7

$ 
   
   
  

8.
2%

*T
ot

al
 S

er
vi

ce
 d

oe
s 

no
t i

nc
lu

de
 V

an
po

ol
, V

ol
un

te
er

 D
riv

er
, S

qu
ax

in
, R

ad
ic

h 
or

 T
-C

C
 

February 20, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 72


	ADPF07F.tmp
	Mason Transit Authority
	Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting
	January 16, 2018
	NEW BUSINESS
	UPCOMING MEETINGS

	ADPC911.tmp
	GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
	Below is a list of major activities for the month:

	TEAM UPDATES
	2018 WORK ITEMS UPDATE

	Workplan Update.pdf
	2018 Final




